File SERIAL NO. SSC-34 COPY NO. <u>137</u>

MTRB LIBRARY

## TECHNICAL PROGRESS REPORT

ON

## THE FUNDAMENTAL FACTORS INFLUENCING THE BEHAVIOR OF WELDED STRUCTURES UNDER CONDITIONS OF MULTI-AXIAL STRESS, AND VARIATIONS OF TEMPERATURE, STRESS CONCENTRATION, AND RATES OF STRAIN

BY

L. J. KLINGLER, L. J. EBERT and W. M. BALDWIN, JR.

Case Institute of Technology Under Bureau of Ships Contract NObs-45470

Transmitted through NATIONAL RESEARCH COUNCIL'S

COMMITTEE ON SHIP STEEL

Advisory to

## SHIP STRUCTURE COMMITTEE

under

Bureau of Ships, Navy Department Contract NObs-50148

Division of Engineering and Industrial Research National Research Council Washington, D. C. November 28, 1949

# NATIONAL RESEARCH COUNCIL

2101 CONSTITUTION AVENUE, WASHINGTON 25, D. C.

COMMITTEE ON SHIP STEEL

November 28, 1949

Chief, Bureau of Ships Code 343 Navy Department Washington 25, D. C.

Dear Sir:

Attached is Report Serial No. SSC-34 entitled "The Fundamental Factors Influencing the Behavior of Welded Structures Under Conditions of Multiaxial Stress, and Variations of Temperature, Stress Concentration, and Rates of Strain." This report has been submitted by the contractor as a Technical Progress Report of the work done on Research Project SR-99 under Contract NObs-45470 between the Bureau of Ships, Navy Department and Case Institute of Technology.

The report has been reviewed and acceptance recommended by representatives of the Committee on Ship Steel, Division of Engineering and Industrial Researh, NRC, in accordance with the terms of the contract between the Bureau of Ships, Navy Department and the National Academy of Sciences.

Very truly yours,

Robert F. Wehl

RFM:mh

R. F. Mehl, Chairman Committee on Ship Steel

Advisory to the SHIP STRUCTURE COMMITTEE a committee representing the combined shipbuilding research activities of the member agencies - U.S. Army, U.S. Navy, U.S. Coast Guard, U.S. Maritime Commission and the American Bureau of Shipping.

#### PREFACE

The Navy Department through the Bureau of Ships is distributing this report for the SHIP STRUCTURE COMMITTEE to those agencies and individuals who were actively associated with the research work. This report presents results of part of the research program conducted under the Ship Structure Committee's directive "to investigate the design and methods of construction of welded steel merchant vessels."

The distribution of this report is as follows:

Copy No. 1 - Chief, Bureau of Ships, Navy Department Copy No. 2 - Dr. D. W. Bronk, National Research Council

Ship Structure Committee

Сору	No.	3 - Rear Admiral Ellis Reed-Hill, USCG - Chairman
Сору	No.	4 - Rear Admiral Charles D. Wheelock, USN, Bureau of Ships
Сору	No 🔹	5 - Brigadier Gen. Paul F. Yount, USA, Department of the Army
Сору	No.	6 - Coptin Los Lo McGuigon, U. S-Maritime Commission - Nakay and 1 -
Copy	No.	7 - D. P. Brown, American Bureau of Shipping

Ship Structure Subcommittee

Copy No. 8 - Captain C. M. Tooke, USN, Bureau of Ships - Chairman
Copy No. 9 - Captain R. A. Hinners, USN, David Taylor Model Basin
Copy No. 10 - Commander R. H. Lambert, USN, Bureau of Ships
Copy No. 11 - Commander R. D. Schmidtman, USCG, U. S. Coast Guard Headquarters
Copy No. 12 - W. G. Frederick, U. S. Maritime Commission
Copy No. 13 - Hubert Kempel, Office, Chief of Transportation, Dept. of the Army
Copy No. 14 - I. R. Kramer, Office of Naval Research
Copy No. 15 - Mathew Letich, American Bureau of Shipping
Copy No. 16 - James McIntosh, U. S. Coast Guard
Copy No. 17 - V. L. Russo, U. S. Maritime Commission
Copy No. 18 - J. E. Walker, Bureau of Ships, U. S. Navy
Copy No. 19 - J. L. Wilson, American Bureau of Shipping
Copy No. 20 - Finn Jonassen, Liaison Representative, NRC
Copy No. 21 - E. H. Davidson, Liaison Representative, AISI
Copy No. 23 - Wm. Spraragen, Liaison Representative, WRC

Committee on Ship Steel

Copy No. 24 - R. F. Mehl, Chairman Copy No. 25 - C. H. Herty, Jr., Vice Chairman Copy No. 26 - Wm. M. Baldwin, Jr. Copy No. 27 - Chas. S. Barrett Copy No. 27 - Chas. S. Barrett Copy No. 28 - R. M. Brick Copy No. 29 - S. L. Hoyt Copy No. 14 - I. R. Kramer Copy No. 30 - M. W. Lightner Copy No. 31 - T. S. Washburn Copy No. 31 - T. S. Washburn Copy No. 32 - S. R. Lillie, Technical Director Copy No. 32 - S. R. Lillie, Technical Aide M. S. a Aker, Bech. Itel - 2nimg Mass. Copy No. 33 - R. H. Maring, Technical Secretary March. M. Lightner, Sec. Co; Schemestary, Mrg. - 102760 Members of Project Advisory Committees SR-98, SR-99, SK-100 and SR-110

Copy No. 34 - R. H. Aborn Copy No. 26 - Wm. M. Baldwin, Jr. Copy No. 35 - L. C. Bibber Copy No. 36 - M. Gensamer Copy No. 37 - M. F. Hawkes Copy No. 38 - W. F. Hess Copy No. 29 - S. L. Hoyt Copy No. 39 - C. E. Jackson Copy No. 40 - P. E. Kyle Copy No. 30 - M. W. Lightner Copy No. 41 - J. R. Low, Jr. Copy No. 42 - J. T. Norton Copy No. 43 - Harry Pierce Copy No. 44 - W. A. Reich Copy No. 45 - C. E. Sims Copy No. 46 - R. D. Stout Copy No. 31 - T. S. Washburn Copy No. 47 - A. G. Bissell, Bureau of Ships, Liaison Copy No. 21 - E. H. Davidson, AISI, Liaison Copy No. 12 - W. G. Frederick, U. S. Maritime Commission, Liaison Copy No. 22 - W. Paul Gerhart, AISI, Liaison Copy No. 48 - Bruce G. Johnston, Welding Research Council, Ligison Copy No. 13 - Hubert Kempel, Department of the Army, Liaison Copy No. 10 - R. H. Lambert, USN, Bureau of Ships, Liaison Copy No. 11 - Condr. R. D. Schmidtman, USCG, U. S. Coast Guard, Liaison Copy No. 18 - J. E. Walker, Bureau of Ships, Liaison Copy No. 19 - J. L. Wilson, American Bureau of Shipping, Liaison Copy No. 49 - W. H. Wooding. Philadelphia Naval Shipyard, Liaison

Navy Department

Copy No. 50 - Comdr. R. S. Mandelkorn, USN, Armed Forces Special Weapons Project Copy No. 51 - A. Amirikian, Bureau of Yards and Docks Copy No. 52 - J. W. Jenkins, Bureau of Ships Copy No. 53 - Noah Kahn, New York Naval Shipyard Copy No. 54 - E. M. MacCutcheon, Jr., David Taylor Model Basin Copy No. 55 - W. R. Osgood, David Taylor Model Basin Copy No. 56 - N. E. Promisel, Bureau of Aeronautics Copy No. 57 - John Vasta, Bureau of Ships Copies 58 and 59 - U. S. Naval Engineering Experiment Station Copy No. 60 - Post Graduate School, U. S. Naval Academy Copy No. 61 - Naval Research Laboratory, Metallurgical Section Copy No. 62 - Naval Research Laboratory, Mechanical Section Copy No. 63 - New York Naval Shipyard, Material Laboratory Copy No. 64 - Industrial Testing Laboratory, Philadelphia Naval Shipyard Copy No. 65 - Philadelphia Naval Shipyard Copy No. 66 - San Francisco Naval Shipyard Copy No. 67 - David Taylor Model Basin, Attn: Library Copies 68 and 69 - Publications Board, Navy Dept. via Bureau of Ships. Code 362 Copies 70 and 71 - Technical Library, Bureau of Ships, Code 364

Copy No. 72 - Captain R. B. Lank, Jr., USCG Copy No. 73 - Captain G. A. Tyler, USCG Copy No. 74 - Testing and Development Division Copy No. 75 - U. S. Coast Guard Academy, New London

#### U. S. Maritime Commission

Copy No. 76 - E. E. Martinsky

#### Representatives of American Iron and Steel Institute Committee on Manufacturing Problems

Copy No. 77 - C. M. Parker, Secretary, General Technical Committee, American Iron and Steel Institute Copy No. 35 - L. C. Bibber, Carnegie-Illinois Steel Corp. Copy No. 25 - C. H. Herty, Jr., Bethlehem Steel Company Copy No. 78 - E. C. Smith, Republic Steel Corporation

Welding Research Council

Copy	No.	79 ·	-	C.	A,	Adams
Copy	No.	80 •		Har	ту	Boardman

Copy No. 81 - LaMotte Grover Copy No. 23 - Wm. Spraragen

Copy No. 82 - C. R. Soderberg, Chairman, Div. Engineering and Ind. Res., NRC. Copy No. 24 - R. F. Mehl, Chairman, Committee on Ship Steel Copy No. 20 - Finn Jonassen, Technical Director, Committee on Ship Steel Copy No. 83 - L. J. Klingler, Investigator, Research Project SR-99 Copy No. 84 - L. J. Ebert, Investigator, Reserarch Project SR-99 Copy No. 26 - Wm. M. Baldwin, Jr., Investigator, Research Project SR-99 Copy No. 85 - S. T. Carpenter, Investigator, Research Project SR-98 Copy No. 86 - C. H. Lorig, Investigator, Research Project SR-110 Copy No. 87 - Carlo Riparbelli, Investigator, Research Project SR-113 Copy No. 88 - E. W. Suppiger, Investigator, Research Project SR-113 Copy No. 89 - E. R. Ward, Investigator, Research Project SR-113 Copy No. 90 - C. B. Voldrich, Investigator, Research Project SR-100 Copy No. 91 - Clarence Altenburger, Great Lakes Steel Company Copy No. 92 - A. B. Bagsar, Sun Oil Company Copy No. 93 - British Shipbuilding Research Assn., Attn: J. C. Asher, Sec. Copy No. 94 - E. L. Cochrane, Massachusetts Institute of Technology Copy No. 95 - George Ellinger, National Bureau of Standards Copy No. 96 - 0. J. Horger, Timken Roller Bearing Company Copy No. 97 - N. M. Newmark, University of Illinois Copy No. 98 - L. J. Rohl, Carnegie-Illinois Steel Corp. Copy No. 99 - W. P. Roop, Swarthmore College Copy No. 100 - Saylor Snyder, Carnegie-Illinois Steel Corp. Copy No. 101 - Watertown Arsenal, Attn: J. F. Wallace Copies 102 thru 126 - Sir Chas. Wright, British Joint Services Mission (Navy Steff) Copy No. 127 - Carl A. Zapffe, Carl A. Zapffe Laboratories Copy No. 128 - International Nickel Co., Inc., Attn: T. N. Armstrong

Copy No. 129 - Transportation Corps Board, Brooklyn, N. Y. Copies 130 thru 134 - Library of Congress via Bureau of Ships, Code 362 Copy No. 135 - Metallurgical Research and Development Company Copy No. 136 - NACA, Attn: Materials Research Coordination, U. S. Navy Copy No. 137 - File Copy, Committee on Ship Steel Copies 138 thru 142 - Bureau of Ships Copy No. 143 - 2.5. michaenson Barn Berg. Mark. Oc. (1/10/50/ Copy No. 144 - J.E. me must. 3/1150 Copy No. 144 - O. .. me much. > [1150 Stolo Copy No. 145 - alan E. Flanigue Dept. y Engineering Unit. 7 Calin L.A. 24. Caly Copy No. 146 - Commence Many G. Schede USA/Ret) The juge Research Unit. 7 Calin Buckley 6/23/20 Copy No. 147 - Curren Frank B. Springer USD. Buckley Code 517 - 9/11/50 Copy No. 148 - Dr. a. meeller, Fli/5-1 Copy No. 149 - ..... Copy No. 148 - W.H. Bruchver, quin. of fee. 4/24/51 Copy No. 149 - W.H. Bruchver, quin. of fee. 4/24/51 Copy No. 150 - leav adm H.C. Shephelard, USC & 2/11/52 Copy No. 151 - Ler. N.P. allen - nach. ohyrican Ref. Eng. - 4-1-52 Comp No. 152 -Copy No. 152 -Copy No. 153 - E. Cnowan - 6 - 11 - 5 3 Copy No. 154 - Burghgraef - Hallond 8/ 1/60 Copy No. 155 -Copy No. 155 -Copy No. 156 -Copy No. 157 -Copy No. 158 -Copy No. 159 -Copy No. 160 -Copy No. 161 -Copy No. 162 -Copy No. 163 -Copy No. 164 -Copy No. 165 -Copy No. 166 -Copy No. 167 -Copy No. 168 -Copy No. 169 -Copy No. 170 -Copy No. 171 -Copy No. 172 -Copy No. 173 -Copy No. 174 -Copy No. 175 - E. P. Klier Their 7 Md - 12/19/19 Mas-HAC (Libiony) 8/10/56 - 1 cong Maishe. Mackie, Sylvey, Nova Scatian - 1 comy - 1/25/56 (Total Copies - 175)

## TECHNICAL PROGRESS REPORT

on

THE FUNDAMENTAL FACTORS INFLUENCING THE BEHAVIOR OF WELDED STRUCTURES UNDER CONDITIONS OF MULTI-AXIAL STRESS, AND VARIATIONS OF TEMPERATURE, STRESS CONCENTRATION, AND RATES OF STRAIN

۲.

by the second second

L. J. Klingler, L. J. Ebert and W. M. Baldwin, Jr.

Case Institute of Technology Under Bureau of Ships Contract NObs-45470

In Cooperation With

Committee on Ship Steel Division of Engineering and Industrial Research National Research Council

Cleveland, Ohio

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page	
Contents		ii	
Abstract			
Introduction			
Material		2	
Procedur	19	3	
	Test Specimen	3	
	Welding Procedure	4	
	Temperature Measurements	6	
	Specimen Preparation	6	
	Testing Procedure	7	
Results		8	
	Steel Comparison	8	
	Preheat and Postheat	9	
	Microstructure	11	
	Microhardness Tests	11	
• · · · · ·	Temperature Messurements	13	
	Specimen Size	13	
	Subcritical Heating	14	
Discussi	ion of Results	15	
Conclusions			
Acknowledgments			
Bibliography			
Figures		20 - 40	
Appendix			

\_ --

\_

· \_\_\_\_

#### ABSTRACT

An investigation was made to determine the dependence of zones of low ductility in weldments upon the steel and upon the welding conditions and heat treatment. The ductility was evaluated by means of eccentric notch-bar tension tests conducted at various low temperatures.

A zone of low ductility was found in two low carbon ship plate steels at a distance of  $0.3 - 0.4^{n}$  from the weld centerline when the weldments were made with  $100^{\circ}$ F preheat and interpass temperature.

A 400°F preheat and interpass temperature improved the ductility in the critical zone, lowering the transition temperature from  $\sim 20^{\circ}$ F to  $\sim 45^{\circ}$ F.

A 1100  $^{\circ}$ F postheat practically eliminated the zone of lowered ductility, the transition temperature being lowered to  $\sim 70^{\circ}$ F.

Temperature measurements made during welding showed that the embrittled region was not heated above the lower critical temperature,

No change in microstructure could be noted between the critical zone and the unaffected base plate. Microhardness tests showed only slight hardening in the embrittled region,

The occurrence of the embrittled region is thought to be due to some subcritical temperature phenomena which may be the supersaturation and precipitation of carbon or carbides from the alpha phase.

#### INTRODUCTION

This report summarizes the work completed on a project sponsored by the Ship Structure Committee and conducted under U. S. Navy Contract NObs-45470 and covers the period from September 1, 1948 to July 1, 1949. An earlier report SSC-24, (1)<sup>#</sup> covered the period from July 1, 1947 to September 1, 1948.

Steel structures have been shown to fail in a brittle manner when subjected to certain service conditions. The conditions which may lead to brittle failure include multiaxial stresses, stress concentration, low temperature, section size, and rate of loading.

The ductility of a structure loaded under a combination of these embrittling factors may be reduced to a low value. Ductility then becomes a more important measure of the structure's resistance to failure than its strength, since it is known that a crack may propagate through a region of low ductility with the absorption of only a small amount of energy.

Since the incidence of brittle failures in ships had increased with the adoption of the welding process for fabrication, it was felt that the welding process must alter the properties of steel. Various investigations employing a number of different specimens have shown that the ductility of a weldment is lower than the ductility of the steel of which the weldment is made.

The general purpose of this investigation was to establish the existence of zones of low ductility in commercially welded ship plate by means of a test which would be sensitive to variations in material and welding conditions. If such zones could be isolated, investigation was to be made of their dependence upon material, variations in the welding process, and heat treatement.

The first report (1) showed that a zone of minimum ductility was located at a distance of 0.3 - 0.4 inch from the weld centerline for a weldment made from "C" steel with a 100°F preheat and interpass temperature. The transition

\* Numbers in parentheses refer to the bibliography at the end of the report.

temperature of this zone, as determined by the eccentric notch tensile test, was  $-20^{\circ}F$  as compared with  $-65^{\circ}F$  for the unaffected base plate.

The investigation was extended to cover "A" steel and the effects of preheating and post heating on "C" steel.

1 + 4 + 5 - 1 - 1

#### MATERIAL

The ship plates selected for this investigation were two of the so-called "project steels" which have been investigated by other groups under the sponsorship of the Ship Structure Committee. Steel "C" was selected because it has been shown to have a high transition temperature, and steel "A" was chosen because it has a lower transition temperature although it has the same approximate composition. Both were semi-killed steels and in the "as-rolled" condition.

The properties reported for these steels are as follows (2):

#### TABLE I

-	Properties of Steel Plate							
Chemical Analysis								
	Carbon	Manganese	Phosphorous	Sulfur	Silicon			
C Steel	0.24%	0.48%	0.012%	0 <b>.026%</b>	0.05%			
A Steel	0 <b>.26%</b>	0.50%	0.012%	0.03%	0.03%			
	Aluminum	<u>Nickel</u>	Copper	Chromium	Moly bdenum			
C Steel	0.016%	0.02%	0.03%	0.03%	0.005%			
A Steel	0.012%	0.02%	0 <b>.03%</b>	0.03%	0.006%			
	Tin	Nitrogen	Vanadium	Arsenic				
6 Steel	0.003%	0.009%	< 0.02%	<0.01%				
A Steel	0.003%	0.004%	< 0.02%	< 0.01%				

	Yield Point	Tensile Strength	Elongation Per Cent
C Steel	39,000	67,400	25.5(8"gage)
A Steel	37,950	59,910	33.5(2"gage)

#### PROCEDURE

#### Test Specimen

Many types of specimens have been used to evaluate the properties of steels and welded structures. In order to establish the existence of zones of lowered ductility, a specimen was needed which would test only a small volume of metal, since the ductility gradient would be expected to be quite steep in a critical region. Such a test must also include some of the previously mentioned embrittling factors which serve to lower the ductility of the whole plate to such a point that the minimum or critical region can be located. The eccentric notch bar tension test meets those requirements in that a very small volume of metal controls the reaction of the specimen, that is, the fiber at the notch bottom which is subjected to the maximum tension stress is the fiber in which fracture init**1**ates (and propagates through the specimen.) The position of this fiber can be chosen at will. The embrittling factors of eccentric loading, multiaxial stress, and a stress raiser are present in the eccentric notch test and low temperature can be added.

The eccentric notch bar tension test has been used in a number of investigations to differentiate among steels (heat treated to the same strength levels) which are known to have different service properties (3)(4). In Fig. 1 the properties of four steels are compared, at room temperature, by means of comcentric and eccentric notch tests (3). The data used to draw these comparison

- 3 -

Mechanical Properties

curves are shown in Fig. 2 where notch strength ratio<sup>\*</sup> is plotted for both the concentric and the eccentric tests as a function of ductility. There appears to be a relation between the two types of notch strengths and the ductility as measured by the contraction in area for the concentric test. Up to two per cent ductility, the concentric notch strength seems to be dependent upon the ductility. Specimens which are strained over two per cent have lost their high initial stress concentration which was one of the embrittling agents and consequently the notch strength becomes independent of the ductility. The eccentric notch test, however, extends the dependence of the notch strength upon ductility up to approximately ten per cent by the addition of another embrittling factor, that of eccentric loading.

It can be seen from Fig. 1 that the eccentric notch test was able to detect differences in the four steels. The rating was in the same order as that shown by the concentric notch test, i.e., the two nickel steels gave higher values than the chromium steel, with the manganese steels showing the poorest performance. The ductility level of ship plate steel is too high to show up any regions of lowered ductility at room temperature but with the addition of the added embrittling agent of low temperature the eccentric notch bar tension test can be expected to detect differences in the various zones encountered in a weldment.

## Welding Procedure

All of the weldments were made at Battelle Memorial Institute under closely controlled conditions. Details of the welding process are given in Figs. 3 and 4.

Each weldment was 18" x 24" x 3/4", constructed of two plates 9" x 24" x 3/4"

- 4 -

<sup>\*</sup> Notch strength ratio is defined as the ratio between the notch strength and the tensile or ultimate strength.

in dimensions. These plates were flame cut from the same large plates and 3/4 inch was machined from the edges to be welded in order to eliminate the heat effect of the flame cutting. The edges to be welded were then machined to a  $30^{\circ}$  bevel and 1/8 inch root face as shown in Fig. 3.

The plates were tack welded using one inch tacks at each end and at the center of the plate, leaving 3/16" clearance between the root faces. A copper back-up bar coated with a thin layer of wollastonite was used for the first weld pass.

No restraint other than the tack welds was used on the weldments and since two inches from each end of the plate were to be discarded, no runoff tabs were required. All welding was manual, using 3/16 inch diameter E6010 electrodes with DC reverse polarity. The welding data are given in Table II.

• ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	Welding Date	ł	·····
· •	Harnischfeger - D. C.	Welder	
· ·	Electrode 3/16" E6010	Reversed Polarity	1999 - S.
Current	150 amps	Pass 1	
	165 amps	Passes 2-6	
Voltage	25 volts	Passes 1-6	
Welding Speed	3.6 in/min	Pass 1	
	4.8 in/min	Passes 2-6	· · ·
Electrode Burn Off Rate	8.5 in/min	Passes 1-6	· · · ·

#### TABLE II

The weldments were preheated prior to the first weld pass. After each pass the weld joint was cooled normally in still air until the desired interpass temperature was reached and then the next pass was made.

- 5 -

Weldments were made using 100°F preheat and interpass temperature and 400°F preheat and interpass temperature. A total of six weldments were made for this phase of the investigation.

After completion of welding, the welded joint was sand blasted and then radiographed for weld imperfections,

2 · · · · · ·

## Temperature Measurements

Tempilaq was used on some of the weldments to determine the  $600^{\circ}$ F and  $1300^{\circ}$ F isotherms on the surface.

On two weldments temperature measurements were made at the midthickness of the plate during welding. These weldments were made with  $100^{\circ}F$  and  $400^{\circ}F$  preheat and interpass temperatures. Thermocouples were placed at varying distances from the weld centerline so that the range of temperature from  $1300^{\circ}F$  to  $600^{\circ}F$  could be covered. The thermocouple holes were  $3/32^{\circ}$  diameter drilled at  $30^{\circ}$  angle, parallel to the machined bevel surface. The holes were staggered so that the temperature distribution was not disturbed in front of each thermocouple. Fig. 5 shows one of the weldments with the thermocouples in place.

All temperature measurements were made at the midthickness of the plate, the same region that was tested in the eccentric notch tests. High speed recorders were used to record the temperatures from the start of each welding pass until some time after the pass was completed.

#### Specimen Preparation

Strips, 1/2 inch wide, were cut from the welded plates perpendicular to the weld. Each strip was etched so that the weld area was visible and the weld centerline could be located. The specimen locations were then laid out so that the notch bottom was the desired distance from the weld centerline and so that the fiber carrying the highest tension load was along the midthickness of the

- 6 -

plate. The location of such a specimen (away from the weld) is shown in Fig. 6.

The notch test specimen is shown in Fig. 7. These specimens had a circumferential  $60^{\circ}$  V-notch removing 50 % of the cross sectional area, and a root radius less than 0.001 inch.

#### Testing Procedure

The test equipment and procedure were the same as those used in the first part of the investigation(1).

The specimens were placed in the fixtures, Fig. 8, so that the fiber from the center of the plate received the maximum tensile stress. The initial eccentricity was set at  $1/4^{n}$ , that is the centerline of the specimen was displaced  $1/4^{n}$  from the line of pull of the tensile machine, as shown in Fig. 7.

The specimen was cooled to a temperature about  $5^{\circ}F$  below the desired testing temperature, allowed to warm up to the testing temperature and then tested. The tests were performed at constant temperature since the testing time was about 30 seconds whereas the warming-up rate was about  $1^{\circ}F/min$ . The specimens were cooled by means of isopentane, dry ice, and liquid nitrogen. Temperatures were measured by placing a pentane thermometer directly beside the specimens. All of the tests were carried out at a low strain rate, the crosshead speed of the tensile machine was approximately 0.1 inch per minute.

The property that was measured was the eccentric notch strength, maximum load divided by the original area at the notch bottom.

- 7 -

#### RESULTS

#### Steel Comparison

The ductility minimum which was observed for the "C" steel at a distance of 0.3 - 0.4 inch from the weld centerline (1) probably would occur in weldments made of other steels. In order to check this an investigation was made on "A" steel weldments. These weldments were welded using the same conditions as for the "C" steel (1).

The data for all of the eccentric notch tests appears in the appendix. The distribution of values for the unaffected base plate<sup>\*</sup>tested at various temperatures, Fig. 9, was of the same type as that for the "C" steel, Fig. 10, except that the entire distribution was shifted to lower temperatures, the transition temperature<sup>\*\*</sup> being about -80°F as compared with -65°F for the "C" steel. The range of values for a given testing temperature was also smaller, particularly at the higher temperatures, indicating that the "A" steel was slightly more uniform.

and the standard of the Arts

In order to compare results for the two steels and three welding conditions, average curves were drawn (dashed curves in the figures). These average curves were drawn midway between the upper and lower limits of the distributions, A comparison of the average curves for the "A" and "C" steel base plates, Fig. 11, shows the lowering of the transition temperature. The difference in velues at the higher testing temperatures is due to the higher tensile strength of the "C" steel, (see Table I).

- 8 -

<sup>\*</sup> Unaffected base plate specimens were taken at distances of two inches or more from the weld centerline and thus were unaffected by the welding, since the maximum temperature reached in this zone was less than 600°F for all welding conditions.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Transition temperature is here defined as the temperature at the midpoint of the average notch strength curve (dashed line in the figures), which gives about the same temperature as the knee in the upper distribution limit.

The distribution of notch properties, determined at  $-10^{\circ}$ F, at various distances from the weld centerline is shown in Fig. 12. The eccentric notch strength was fairly uniform across the plate. However a slight minimum was observed at 0.3 - 0.4 inch from the weld centerline and the slight maximum at the weld junction 0.1 - 0.2 inch from the weld centerline.

The distribution determined at  $-70^{\circ}$ F, Fig. 13, showed the presence of a definite minimum at the location 0.3 - 0.4 inch from the weld centerline. A maximum is also evident at the weld junction. The positions of the minimum and maximum are identical with those found for the "C" steel.

Tests on a number of specimens of "A" steel from the region of low ductility were made at various temperatures. From these tests, Fig. 14, it can be seen that the transition temperature is about  $-40^{\circ}F_{\bullet}$ . A comparison of the average curve for this position of minimum ductility with a similar curve for "C" steel, Fig. 15, shows that the curves are very similar, the curve for the "A" steel being about  $20^{\circ}F$  lower than that for the "C" steel.

#### Preheat and Postheat

In order to investigate the possible beneficial effects of preheating and postheating, weldments of "C" steel were made using a  $400^{\circ}$ F preheat and interpass temperature, and a postheat treatment was given to a "C" steel weldment which had been welded with a  $100^{\circ}$ F preheat. The post heat treatment consisted of holding the weldment at  $1100^{\circ}$ F for one hour, furnace cooling to  $300^{\circ}$ F, followed by air cooling to room temperature.

The sampling and testing techniques for this phase of the work were kept the same as previously. (1)

The results for the 400°F preheat are given in Figs. 16, 17 and 18. As was to be expected, the distribution of values for the unaffected base plate, Fig.

- 9 -

16, was practically identical to that for the  $100^{\circ}F$  preheat, Fig. 10. However the distribution of values across the weld determined at  $-80^{\circ}F$ , Fig. 17, showed a definite improvement, over the  $100^{\circ}F$  preheat, in the region of low ductility. The variation of values in this region is greater and approaches that of the base plate.

This improvement can also be seen in Fig. 18, which shows the change of notch strength with temperature in the zone of low ductility. The transition temperature has been shifted to about  $-45^{\circ}F$  as compared with  $-20^{\circ}F$  for the  $100^{\circ}F$  preheat, (see Fig. 15.)

The results for the  $1100^{\circ}$ F postheat are given in Figs. 19, 20 and 21. The distribution of values for the unaffected base plate, Fig. 19, showed less variation than the weldments which were not postheated, Figs. 10 and 16. The variation of values was less at the higher temperatures and the transition temperature was shifted to a lower temperature,  $-75^{\circ}$ F as compared, with -650F.

The distribution of notch strengths at  $-80^{\circ}F$ , Fig. 20, shows that the minimum which was previously observed at 0.3 - 0.4 inch from the weld centerline has been practically eliminated, that is, the material in this zone shows the same range of values as the unaffected plate.

The elimination of the minimum shows up as a lowering of the transition temperature for this region, Fig. 21. The transition temperature has been shifted to  $-70^{\circ}$ F as compared to  $-20^{\circ}$ F for the weldment which was not postheated.

A comparison can now be made on the effects of preheating and postheating. The transition curves for the unaffected base plates of "C" steel, Fig. 22, show that:

- 1) Data for the  $100^{\circ}$ F and  $400^{\circ}$ F preheat fit on the same curve.
- 2) The postheated plate has less variation in values but almost the same transition temperature as the plates without postheat.

3) The notch strength at the higher testing temperature was lower for the postheated plate because of a slight softening of the material. This was shown also by the hardness tests described later.

A comparison of the distributions of notch strength across the welds determined at  $-80^{\circ}$ F, Fig. 23, shows the improvement which has been made. The  $400^{\circ}$ F preheat shows a definite improvement and the postheat treatment virtually eliminates the region of low ductility.

This improvement is even more noticeable in a comparison of the transition curves for this region, Fig. 24. The transition temperature of  $-20^{\circ}$ F for the  $100^{\circ}$ F preheat was shifted to  $-45^{\circ}$ F by the  $400^{\circ}$ F preheat, and to  $-70^{\circ}$ F by the postheat treatment.

## Microstructure

An investigation was made on the microstructure in the critical zone  $(0.3^n)$  from the weld centerline) for all three welding conditions on "C" steel.

In Fig. 25, photomicrographs for the unaffected base plate and the 0.3" position at 100x and 2000x magnifications are shown for a "C" steel weldment with 100°F preheat and interpass temperature. There seems to be no difference in the structures of these two locations.

In Fig. 26, photomicrographs are shown for the  $0.3^n$  position for "C" steel weldments which were preheated at  $400^{\circ}$ F and postheated at  $1100^{\circ}$ F. These, also seem to have the same structure as the unaffected base plate.

#### Microhardness Tests

Microhardness tests were made on all of the weldments with a Tukon Hardness Tester using a  $136^{\circ}$ Diamond Pyramid Indentor and 1000 gram load. The indentations were about 0.004 inch (0.1 mm) long and were spaced at intervals of 0.01 inch (0.25 mm). Microhardness surveys were made across representative sections of all the welds at the midthickness of the plates. These results are shown in Fig. 27. The greatest variation in hardness was shown by the "C" steel weldment with  $100^{\circ}$ F preheat. A number of hardness peaks were found, the highest one being at the weld junction. The other peaks were due to the composite heat affected zone caused by the six weld passes. To compare this scale with Rockwell hardness tests, the maximum hardness of 240 on the DPH scale corresponds to about Rockwell C20, and the minimum hardness of 150 on the DPH scale corresponds to about Rockwell B80.

The "C" steel weldment with  $400^{\circ}$ F preheat had almost a flat hardness distribution with no prominent peaks.

The hardness distribution curve for the weldment which was postheated was similar to that of the weldment without postheat except that the peaks were lowered from a maximum of DPH 240 to DPH 200. The overall level of the whole curve was also lowered indicating some softening of the whole plate.

The hardness curve for the "A" steel weldment was similar to that for the "C" steel weldment, but the peaks were lower and the overall curve was lower for the "A" steel.

A more detailed investigation was made of the "C" steel weldment with 100°F preheat. Surveys were made across the thickness of the plate at various distances from the weld centerline. From these surveys a model, Fig. 28, was constructed which shows the overall hardness picture and the complexity of the heat affected zone. The sketch in the figure shows the position of the weldment and the six weld passes. The effect of each weld pass can be seen as a peak in hardness, the zones from each peak blending together to give the overall picture. The zone of low ductility lies in the region behind the hardness peaks where the hardness distribution is relatively flat.

- 12 -

A few sections from the model at various distances from the weld centerline, Fig. 29, show the magnitude of the peaks especially at 0.08 and .12 inches from the weld centerline.

#### Temperature Measurements

The results of the temperature measurements made during the welding of the "C" steel, as illustrated in Fig. 5, are given in Figs. 30, 31 and 32. In Fig. 30, the maximum temperatures reached during the welding process are shown as a function of the distance from the weld centerline for the weldments with  $100^{\circ}$ F and  $400^{\circ}$ F preheats respectively. In the region of low ductility (0.3 - 0.4 inch from weld centerline) the temperature evidently never reached the lower-critical temperature for either weldment.

In Fig. 31, the complete heating and cooling history of the region of low ductility is given for both welding conditions. For each weldment the peak temperatures decrease for the last three weld passes. The 400°F preheat weldment showed a higher peak temperature for the first two passes than the 100°F preheat weldment.

A comparison of the heating and cooling cycles for the first pass for the two welding conditions, Fig. 32, shows that the 100°F preheat weldment has a faster cooling rate. This difference in cooling rate can be shown for all of the weld passes.

### Specimen Size

The changes in notch strength and hardness were very rapid as the distance from the weld centerline was increased from zero to 0.5 inch. Consequently, a smaller specimen than the specimen which was used might be expected to show up greater differences in notch strengths. A few specimens were made of "A" steel with 0.212" outside diameter and 0.150" notch diameter. The area of the notched section was thus one-half of that of the standard specimen. Tests were taken from the weld metal, base plate and the zones containing the maximum and the minimum eccentric notch strength. The specimens were tested at  $-70^{\circ}$ F and the results are shown in Fig. 33 superimposed on the results of the standard specimens (taken from Fig. 13).

In the zone of minimum ductility the notch strengths of the smaller specimens fell in the range of values of the standard specimen. In the other positions the smaller specimens gave higher values. However, a higher notch strength would be expected in these regions because of the slightly smaller effective notch sharpness<sup>\*</sup>, and the regular section size effect. The difference, however, was small. In the region of low ductility the fiber in maximum tension controls the reaction of the specimen so that the above-mentioned factors have a negligible effect.

This specimen then offers no advantages over the standard specimen when taken from the center of the plate.

#### Subcritical Heating

The temperature measurements that were made indicated that the embrittled zone for the  $100^{\circ}F$  preheat weldment was cooled from about  $1000^{\circ}F$  in the first three weld passes. An attempt was made to duplicate the embrittlement shown in the region of low ductility by means of heating and cooling of base plate. Blanks of "C" steel base plate were heated to 950°F held for 5 minutes and cooled to give three different cooling rates, air cool, oil quench, and water

\* Notch sharpness is defined as the ratio of the radius of the cross section at the notch to the notch radius. quench. Standard specimens were made and tested at  $-30^{\circ}F$ . The notch strengths for all three rates of cooling were low, Fig. 34, and when compared to the spread of values for the base plate\* at  $-30^{\circ}F$ , it can be seen that the material was embrittled by this heating and cooling. The spread in values for base plate tested at  $-120^{\circ}F$  will encompass all of the values so that in effect the transition temperature appears to have been raised approximately  $40^{\circ}F$  by these subcritical heating and cooling cycles. This is comparable to the change in transition temperature in the "C" steel weldment where the transition temperature of  $-65^{\circ}F$ in the unaffected base plate, Fig. 10, was raised to  $-20^{\circ}F$  in the critical region, Fig. 15, a change of about  $45^{\circ}F$ .

#### DISCUSSION OF RESULTS

The temperature measurements which were made during welding on both  $100^{\circ}$ F and  $400^{\circ}$ F preheat weldments showed that the zone of low ductility was not heated above the lower critical temperature. Also, no differences in microstructure could be distinguished in the structures in the critical zone and in the un-affected base plate.

The hardness tests cannot be correlated with the notch strength. The peak in hardness was associated with the maximum in notch strength, but the minimum in notch strength occurred in a region where the hardness variations were leveling off. Therefore, hardness cannot be used as a measure of ductility in these weldments.

An investigation on the annealing of low carbon steel (5) has shown that there are three factors which change the properties of a steel when it is cooled. The first of these is the gamma-alpha transformation which results in a reduced grain size and higher hardness. If the cooling is sufficiently fast a martensitic structure is formed which on tempering still remains relatively hard and

\* Spread in values was obtained from Fig. 10.

- 15 -

has a ductility higher than that of pearlite. This may then account for the maximum in notch strength which was observed.

The remaining factors may account for the ductility minimum which was observed. The first, the solution effect, is essentially the formation of a supersaturated solid solution of carbon in ferrite which is harder than the equilibrium mixture. Associated with this is the other factor, aging. It results from precipitation of carbon or carbides from the supersaturated solution. The solid solution factor has its maximum effect upon fast quenching from the lower critical. However, the aging effect would be expected to have a maximum effect at some critical point of time and temperature, beyond which the effects would be decreased. These factors have been shown to produce an increase in hardness and an accompanying decrease in ductility in low carbon steel.

The solid solution and aging effects can occur simultaneously at the cooling rates found in the region of low ductility in the weldments. The heating and cooling curves showed that the temperature did not reach the lower critical and the cooling rates were not fast enough to obtain the maximum solid solution effect. However, the time-temperature relations which are encountered in the critical zone for a weldment with 100°F preheat may be those which would cause maximum embrittlement. The 400°F preheat weldment had a slower cooling rate which would permit less of the solid solution and aging effects and thus explain the improvement in the critical region. The almost complete elimination of the critical region by the posthoat treatment would then be attributed to "overaging", that is the aging effect was carried past the critical point.<sup>9</sup> According to this hypothesis, varying combinations of preheat and postheat would be expected to give different degrees of improvement depending upon whether the solution and aging effects were carried to, or past, the critical point.

\* This effect of overaging was observed for the low carbon steel (5).

. . . . .

- 16 -

## CONCLUSIONS

- A mone of low ductility was detected in the welded plate, at a distance of 0.3 0.4" from the weld centerline for both "C" steel and "A" steel welded with 100°F preheat.
- 2. A  $400^{\circ}$ F preheat improved the ductility in the critical zone, lowering the transition temperature from  $-20^{\circ}$ F to  $-45^{\circ}$ F.
- 3. A  $1100^{\circ}F$  postheat practically eliminated the zone of low ductility, the transition being lowered to  $-70^{\circ}F$ .
- 4. Temperature measurements showed that the occurrence of this region of low ductility is due to some subcritical temperature phenomena which may be the supersaturation and precipitation of carbon or carbides.

## ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Acknowledgment is given to the Battelle Memorial Institute for welding the plates and conducting the temperature measurements and particularly, to Messers. C. B. Voldrich, P. J. Rieppel, and M. Forman for their aid.

The authors are also indebted to Dr. S. J. Liu who made the microhardness tests.

#### BIBLIOGRAPHY

- 1. G. Sachs, L. J. Ebert, and A. W. Dana, "The Fundamental Factors Influencing the Behavior of Welded Structures Under Conditions of Multiaxial Stress, and Variations of Temperature, Stress Concentration and Rates of Strain", Navy Department, BuShips Contract NObs-45470, Serial NO. SSC-24, May 10, 1949.
- 2. Technical Progress Report of the Ship Structure Committee, Welding Journal, Vol. 13 (1948) pp 377s - 384s.
- G. Sachs, L. J. Ebert and W. F. Brown, Jr., "Comparison of Various Structural Alloy Steels by Means of the Static Notch-Bar Tensile Test", Trans. Am. Inst. Mining Met. Engrs., Vol. 171 (1947) pp 605 - 621.
- 4. G. Sachs, J. D. Lubahn, L. J. Ebert, "Notched Bar Tensile Test Characteristics of Heat Treated Low Alloy Steels", Trans. Am. Soc. Metals, Vol. 33 (1944) pp 340 -395
- 5. G. Sachs, L. J. Ebert, G. B. Kasik, and J. F. Nejedlik, "Fundamentals of Annealing Low Carbon Steel, Part I", Iron and Steel Engineer, (1946) November.



- 20 -



FIG. 3: PLATE PREPARATION



ELECTRODE ~ %16" EGOIO PASSES 1, 3, 5, 6 : SAME DIRECTION PASSES 2, 4 : OPPOSITE DIRECTION

FIG. 4 : WELDING PROCEDURE



FIG. 5.° SET UP FOR PARASURING PLATE TEPAPERATURES DURING WEEDING.



FIG. 6: LOCATION OF SPECIMEN IN THICKNESS DIMEN-SION OF WELDMENT.



FIG. 7: SPECIMEN WITH 50 PERCENT SHARP NOTCH USED IN ECCENTRIC TESTING (50 PERCENT OF THE AREA REMOVED AT THE NOTCH BOTTOM).



FIG. 8: METHOD OF LOADING TO OBTAIN 1/4 INCH ECCENTRICITY (ECCENTRICITY AND THE POSITION OF FIXTURES ARE EXAGGERATED).











- 27 -





- 28 -







- 30 -









......

- 32 -



2. UNAFFECTED BASE PLATE 100 X



C. Q.3 ITTAN MELO CENTERLIME 100X





6. UMATECTED BASE PLATE 2000 X

d. 0.3 FRAM MELO CLINTERLINE 2000 X

FIG. 25 : MICHOSTRUCTURES OF UNAFFECTED BASE PLATE AND CRITICAL ZONE IN C STEEL WELDMENT MADE WITH 100°F PREHEAT AND INTERPASS TEMPERATURE (PICRAL ETCH)



100 X C.





Q&.5. 100 F PREHEAT AND INTERPASS TEMP.

2000X

6

C. & d. 100 F PREMEAT AND INTERPASS TEMP. 1100°F POSTHEAT

FRE 26 : MICROSTRUCTURES OF CRITICAL ZONE (0.3 FROM WELD CENTERLINE) IN C STEEL WELD-MENTS MADE WITH PREHEAT AND POSTHEAT RESPECTIVELY (PICHAL ETCH).

**q**.



- 35 -



FIG 28: MICROHABOMESS SURVEY ON A J<sup>E</sup>PLATE MELOMENT OF STEEL C (100°F PREHEAT AND INTERPASS TEMPLERATURE)





SAUTURAS SAUTISM



FIG.31. HEATING AND COOLING CURVES IN THE REGION OF LOWEST DUCT, VITY FOR TWO 6 PASS WELDMENTS. + 38



FIG.32"HEATING AND COOLING CUIPILS IN THE REGION OF LOMEST DUCTUITY FOR TWO MELDING CON-DITIONS.



\$

THE 33. EFFECT OF SPECIMEN SECTION SIZE ON THE DISTRIBUTION OF ECCENTRIC NOTCH STRENGTH AT -TO'T.



THE 34.EFFECT OF SUBCRITICAL HEATING AND COOL-ING ON THE ECCENTRIC NOTCH STRENGTH OF UNAFIECTED BASE PLATE.

## APPENDIX

## TABLE I

	Da va	O D CEOT METOTIC	nuo 100 r Frei	lea u		
Distance	Testing	Eccentric	Distance	Testing	Lccentric	
from Weld	Temper-	Notch	from Weld	Temper-	Noteh	
Centerline	ature	Strength	Centerline	ature	Strength	
inches	Ŧ	1000 psi	Inches	°F	<u>1000 psi</u>	
0.0	RŢ	93.5	0.3	RT	96.2	
0.0	RT	98.6	0.3	RT	108.5	
0.0	-10	105.8	0.3	-10	94+5	
0.0	-10	-108.0	0.3	-10	68.8	
0.0	-40	113.0	0.3	-10	109.0	
0.0	-40	111.5	0.3	-10	63.5	
00	-60	89.2	0.3	-40	69.3	
0,0	<b>-6</b> 0	109.0	0.3	-40	46.7	
0.0	-80	110,0	0.3	-40	31.4	
0.0	-80	109.5	0.3	-40	42.4	
			0,3	<b>~6</b> 0	53.2	
0,1	$\mathbf{RT}$	109.0	0.3	-60	33.0	
0,1	RT	101.5	0,3	<b>~~6</b> 0	35.2	
0,1	-10	127.5	0,3	-60	30.8	
0.1	-10	113.0	0.3	-60	38.1	
0.1	-40	122.6	0.3	-80	28.7	
0.1	-40	109.7	0.3	-80	29.7	
0.1	-60	113.8	0.3	-80	29.5	
0.1	-60	123.0	0.3	-80	32.5	
0.1	-80	54.4		~ -		
0.1	-80	110.0	0.4	RT	103.5	
0.1	80	51.1	0.4	RT	104.0	
0.1	-80	118.5	0.4	RT	102.5	
			0.4	-10	65.0	
0.2	RT	95.8	0.4	-10	86.0	
0.2	RT	107.0	0.4	-10	100.0 +	
0.2	-10	121.8	0.4	-40	89.7	
0.2	-10	120.0	0.4	-70	75.7	
0.2	-40	124.2	0.4	-40	34.2	
0.2	-40	86.5	0.4	-40	59.2	
0.2	-60	118-8	0.4	-60	12.7	
0.2	-60	109.0	0_/	<b>-6</b> 0	62.5	
0.2	-80	124.5	0.4	-60	62.3	
0.2	-80	129.0	0.4	- AU	37.9	
~ =~	ŬŲ.	+~/#~		-20 -80	12.5	
			0_1	<b>_</b> 80	3/. 0	
			0.4	<u>-80</u>	27.9	
			V#4	-00	A1\$7	

i

Data C Steel Weldments 100°F Proheat

•

Distance from Weld Centerline _Inches	Testing Temper- ature oF	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi	Distance from Weld Centerline Inches	Testing Temper- ature or	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi
0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5	RT -10 -10 -10 -40 -40 -60 -60 -60 -80	99.0 104.0 78.8 97.3 63.4 83.8 62.3 56.9 98.8 50.8	1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0	RT -10 -10 -40 -40 -60 -60 -80 -80	95.8 94.0 103.0 108.5 91.0 82.1 86.1 74.3 49.5 91.8
0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6	-40 -40 -60 -60	59.6 95.5 60.6 55.5	1.1 1.1 1.2	-60 -60 -60	71.7 98.5 70.8
0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7	-40 -40 -60 -60	69.3 64.5 50.4 90.7	1.2 1.3 1.3	-60 -60 -60	85.0 40.8 86.2
0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8	RT -10 -10 -40 -40 -60 -60 -80 -80	96.0 97.5 76.4 84.3 55.7 60.1 59.8 73.0 46.8 28.8	1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4	RT -10 -10 -40 -40 -60 -60 -80 -80	95.0 108.5 92.4 91.0 86.0 79.0 87.0 89.0 47.2 84.0
0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9	-40 -40 -60 -60	89•2 86•6 71•5 55•4	1.5 1.5 1.6 1.6	60 60 60 60	54.4 76.0 50.4 89.5
· .			1.7 1.7	-60 -60	85.0 87.3
• • •	· · ·		1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8	-40 -40 -60 -60	61.5 86.0 85.7 92.5

•

•

A 2

•

÷ . . .

.

Distance	Testing	Eccentric	Distance	Testing	Eccentric
Contenline	rember-	Noton	Iron weld	Temper-	Noten
Trabas	ature	Strength	Centerline	ature	Strength
Inches	<u> </u>	1000 051	inches	<u> </u>	1000 psi
1.9	-60	70 5		-10	<b>00</b> 0
10	-00	77.3	4.0	-10 -10	99±0
	-00	7200	4+0	. 40	109.0
2.0	TO //T	01.0	4.0	-40	82.7
2.0	<u>ni</u> D/f	94**	4.0	40	78.3
2.0	R1 20	9 <b>5</b> •4	4.0	-40	92.0
2.0	-10	89.3	4.0	-40	92.3
2,0	-10	110.2	4.0	~40	86.3
2.eU	-60	61.8	4.0	-40	73.3
2.0	-60	51.5	4.0	-40	90.3
2,0	-60	98,2	4.0	-40	82,2
2.0	<del>~</del> 60	92.1	4.0	-40	S <b>6.7</b>
2.0	-80	46.3	4.0	-40	64.4
2 <b>.</b> 0	-80	52+4	4.0	-80	72.3
			4.0	-80	45.0
2.2	40	91.4	4.0	<b>~</b> 80	68.3
2,2	-40	61.7	4.0	-80	43.8
			4.0	-80	4404
2.4	$\mathbf{RT}$	98.5	4.0	-80	43.4
2.4	RT	94.0	4.0	-80	71.7
2.4	-10	96 <b>.5</b>	4.0	-80	53.5
2.4	-10	95.0	4.0	-80	82.5
2.4	-80	60.0	4.0	-80	57.8
2.4	~80	59.1	4.0	-80	42.2
			4.0	-80	72.1
4.0	RT	98.0	4.0	-100	32.4
4.0	RT	96.5	4.0	-100	34.3
4.0	RT	92.3	4.0	-110	30.3
4.0	RT	93.5	4.0	-110	46.3
4.0	RT	89.5	4.0	-110	29.2
4.0	BT	94.5			₩ / <b>₩</b> ₩
4.0	RT	02.8	5.5	RT	05 F
4.0	ት የ	03 3	5.5	B4	951
4.0	RT	90°5	5.5	-10	7 <b>2-</b> 1
1.0	*** ፑጥ	7~ # ノ 	)•) 5 5	-10	90.0
4.0	101 D/F	7330 01 E	202 22	#10 #10	7402
4.0	101 1017	94+2 06 E	7•2	•40 40	00.00
4.0	ni Dm	00.0	2.2	-40	90.0
4.0	10	94+3	2.2	-50	87.1
4.0	=10	91.0	2.2	-60	81.5
4.0	-10	82.5	2.2	-60	70.5
4.0	•10 10	90.0	2.2	-60	88.2
4.0	-10	94.0	202	-70	80,9
4.0	-10	91.5	5 - 5	-70	58,8
4.0	-10	90.5	5.5	-70	58.3
4.0	-10	97.5	202	-80	34.8
4 • U	-10	93+3	5.5	-98	30.0
			1		

.

A 3

	۰,	ана ала страна страна страна и страна и При страна и				
	a ******. *	Distance from Weld <b>Center</b> line Inches		Testing Temper- ature or	· · ·	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi
		6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0	•	-108 -110 -110 -110 -120 -120 -120 -120		31.7 45.2 34.3 34.0 31.2 35.5 39.2 37.5
					• K	. м
					х Х	
:		·		<u>.</u>		
				:		
				•		
		* <u>.</u>				
•				•	:	
×		۶4	к. х <sup>1</sup>		•	
•		· ·		·	· · ·	
				·	۰.	· .
				<b>k</b> 1		1
		· ·	.,			4] a
			, ,		•	
		<b>**</b>	• •	\$	•	
		• •		2 3	•	•

• '

.

Distance from Weld Centerline Inches	Testing Temper- ature °F	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi	Distance from Weld Centerline Inches	Testing Temper- ature <sup>O</sup> F	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi
				مداني غديمتي بدان - في 19 ايليون - «».	,
0.0	-10	111.2	0.8	-10	95.8
0.0	-10	110.0	0.8	-10	95.5
0.0	-70	116,5	0.8	<b>-7</b> 0	52,8
0.0	<b>7</b> 0	85.0	0,8	-70	69.6
<b>.</b> .			0.8	-70	95+5
0.1	-10	113.5	0,8	-70	70.0
0.1	-10	110.7		_	
0.1	-70	119.0	1.4	-10	87.3
0.L	-70	114.0	1.4	-10	91.3
0.0	30	100.0	1.4	-70	71.6
0.2	-10	102,0	1.4	-70	78.3
0.2	≠10 •70	105.3	1-4		62.3
0.2	<b>₩7</b> 0 <b>₩7</b> 0	119.5	±∗4	●'/U	95°T
			2.0~	RT	87.5
0.3	-10	92.0	2.0	RT	87,9
0.3	-10	77.6	2.0	RT	88.1
0.3	-10	101.2	2.0	RT	87.4
0.3	-10	106.9	2.0	-10	88.2
0.3	-70	51.7	2.0	-10	92.5
0.3	-70	58.3	2.0	-10	87.0
0.3	<del>-</del> 70	75-5	2.0	-10	90.0
0.05	Dm	303.0	2.0	-10	94.2
0.35	RT Dm	101.3	2.0	-10	90.7
0.35	<b>R</b> 1	104.0	2.0	# <u>10</u>	92.5
0.35	#20 /20	104.2	2.0	-10	90.5
0.35	<del>y</del> 20	104.9 00 0	2.0		94.8
0.25	<b>-</b> 40 	07:0 100 7	2.0	••10 (0	7202
0.35	-40 -40	100.2	2.0	=40 	92+4 02 K
0.35	-100	20 7	20	-40	92+2 01 /
0.35	<b>-100</b>	-51.1	2.0	-40	72.7
		و وہر	2.0	=40 =40	88.7
0.4	<b>+1</b> 0	103.5	2.0	-40 -40	81.3
0.4	-10	91.5	2.0	-40	90.7
0.4	-10	105.2	2.0	-40	92.7
0.4	-70	55.0	2.0-	-40	92.5
0.4	-70	37.7	2.0	-70	66.0
0.4	<b>7</b> 0	51.1	2.0	-70	.81.3
			2,0	-70	93.2
0.5	-10	93.1	2,0	<b>-</b> 70	77.6
0.5	-10	98, 3	2,0	-80	85.4
0.5	-70	72.4	2,0	<b>+8</b> 0	53.8
0.5	-70	50.5	2.0	-80	54.3
0.5	-70	101.8			
0.5	<b>7</b> 0	97.1	I		

Data A Steel Weldments 100°F Preheat

Distance

Testing

TABLE II

A 5

- . .

••••••

-	Distance from Weld Centerline Inches	Testing Temper- ature <sup>O</sup> F	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi
	2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0	-80 -80 -80 -80 -80 -80 -80 -80 -110 -11	78.7 93.2 88.7 86.7 93.3 78.0 60.0 85.1 59.0 85.1 59.0 85.7 40.1 44.3 42.4 43.8 42.4 43.8 48.3 34.6 47.0 42.2 34.8 39.2
	4.0 4.0	RT RT RT -60 -60 -60 -60 -60 -80 -80 -90 -90 -90 -90 -100 -100 -100 -100 -1	84.8 84.3 84.8 90.0 89.0 95.5 90.0 68.0 83.5 45.0 82.8 67.0 59.8 51.0 81.8 65.2 41.6 54.0 62.8 46.4 34.0 39.6

ł

.

TA	BLE	III

	والموديا اليوديات ومارها إيدا الأروارية المترافية				
Distance from Weld Centerline	Testing Temper- ature	Eccentric Notch Strength	Distance from Weld Centerline	Testing Temper-	Eccentric Notch
Inches	o <sub>₽</sub>	1000 pei	Tnohes	°0 <sub>10</sub>	3000
	د. غاروی، داورد ما در وی این در از این در ا		Inches	<u>F</u>	1000 081
0.0	.00	77/ 7	3 0		17 0
0.0	+00 00	114.1	1.0	-00	41.0
0.0	-80	112.2	102	-8U	32.8
U <sub>e</sub> U	-80	113.0	1.2	-80	70.5
0.1		1100	<b></b> ,	-00	67 2
0.7	-00	100 1	⊥#4¥ •1 2	-60	(m.)
0.1	-00	107.1	1.*4	#8U	07.0
U.L	-80	109.7	1.4	-80	71.8
0.3	0	00.3	2.0	ጽሞ	92.1
0.3	n i	10/ 0	20	ጀም	02 2
0 3	Õ .	104.0	20	101 101	7260
0.7	40	103.0	2.0	N1 DM	9 <b>3</b> •2
0.3	-40	42+4	20	RT	93.0
0.3	-40	63.2	2.0	RT	95⊾3
0.3	-40	102.3	2.0	RT	90 <b>.0</b>
0.3	-40	54.6	2.0	RT	<b>8</b> 8.0
0.3	-40	62.5	2.0	$\mathbf{RT}$	92.2
0.3	-40	92.0	2.0	0	94.7
0.3	-40	8/ 5	2.0	0	93.4
0.3	-40	72 0	20	ň	06 3
	-00	02.2	2.0	-10	70e) 0r r
0.9	-00	92.02	2.00	-40	07*7 07*7
0.3	+80	42.2	2.0	-40	87.5
0.3		41.4	2.0	-40	66.9
0.3	<del>~</del> 80	47.2	2.0	-40	90 <b>.</b> 6
0.3	<del>-</del> 80	37.2	2,0	<b></b> 40	87.5
0.3	<del>~</del> 80	41.6	2.0	-40	97.1
0.3	-80	66.7	2.0	-40	72.7
0.3	-80	46.9	2.0	-10	54.4
0.3	-80	11.7	2.0	-10	7/ . 7
0.3	-100	16 0	2.0	-60	72.2
	-100	20.0	2.0	-00	14454 00 7
0.3	#100	37.0	2.00		90 <b>43</b>
0.3	-100	38.4	2.0	-60	70.1
			2.0	-60	73.6
0#4	-80	. 38.3	2,0	-80	42.8
0.4	-80	49.2	2.0	-80	48 <b>.</b> 7
0.4	<b>#8</b> 0	39,1	2.0	<b>~8</b> 0	68.9
0.4	<b>~</b> 80	53.8	2.0	-80	67.9
0.4	<b>#8</b> 0	39.2	2.0	-80	88.2
- 34			2.0		74.8
05	<b>\$</b> 0	27.6	20	-80	89.7
0 6		0,0	20	- 00	27 <b>87</b>
V•7	<b>₩</b> 0U	0406	2.40	-00	10 6
U <sub>2</sub> 5	<b>~8</b> U	42.0	2.0	-80	41.0
	<b>.</b>		2.0	-80	01.2
1.0	<b>#8</b> 0	56.2	2,0	-80	36.8
1.0	<del>~</del> 80	80.2	2.0	-100	31.8
1.0	<del>~</del> 80	63.2	2.0	-100	37.2
, :	ц.	le la			

-----

Data C Steel Weldments 400°F Preheat

\_\_\_\_\_

æ	۰.	••••••	Distan from W Center Inch	ce 'eld line es	Testing Temper- ature SF	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi	
			2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0		-100 -100 -100 -120 -120 -120 -120 -140 -140 -140 -140	44.1 32.2 37.6 51.7 40.2 38.0 33.2 36.6 45.1 33.0 34.4	
		·				. •	
					• • >		·
			<b>**</b> .	<b>9</b>			
	•		·	•			
	:						
					:	· .	
	T				с. А		
	an est an an an an an an an an An an an an An an						
				· .		- -	
							·

TABLE ]	[V
---------	----

Г. W.

----

Data C Steel Weldments 100°F Prehest, 1100°F Postheat					theat
Distance from Weld Centerline Inches	Testing Temper- ature <sup>o</sup> F	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi	Distance from Weld Centerline Inches	Testing Temper- ature oF	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi
<del>میں پر میں اور اور میں میں پر اور اور اور اور اور اور اور اور اور او</del>	and the second secon	رور به المحمود المحمد المح و			
0	-80	110 0	20	יזיכן	02.0
Õ	-00 80	11245 ····································		ν NT	
0		TT/07	2.0	Du Du	7K+1
Ū	-00	11401	200	DUD DUD	7⊥#⊥ 01 0
0.1	¢∩	112.0		1.1 D/T	7104
0.1	-00 -00		2.0	11 11	74.94
0.1	-00 .00	⊥±2+/ סימרר	2.0	л <u>т</u>	74+1
U.L	<b>=</b> 00	TT /00	2.0	1.1	91.0
0.2	.00	11 <b>7</b> 7 1		1.1	90.eL
0.2	**OU	11/01	2*0	<u>R1</u>	γ <b>≮</b> ∎1 Ω2 1
0.2		102.7	2.0	0	93.1
0.2	-00	103.9	2.0	0	92.02
0 7	0	<u> </u>	2.0	0	91.7
0.9	0	92.0	2.0	0	94.8
0.3		100.2	2.0		85.8
. 0.2	-40	07#J	2.0	-40	94.1
0.3	-40	9905	2.0	<del>~</del> 40	85.4
0.3	-40	92.08	2.0	-40	86,7
0.3	-40	102.9	2.0	-40	90.0
0.3	~80	95.4	2.0	-40	92.2
0.3	-80	29.4	2,0	-40	91.04
0.3		92.09	2.0	+60	02.0
0.3	#120 100	35-4	2.0	=60	64.5
0.3	-120	43.0	2,0		00.7
U. 3	-120	27.0	2.0	*00 100	91.5
A: /	60	10 0	2.0	=80 do	81.5
0.4	-80	40.7	2.0	-80	88,6
0.4	~80	89.4	2,0	<b>⊷</b> 80	73+4
0.4	##8U	48.3	2.0	-80	85.9
0.0	đo	10.3	2.0	=-8U 	84.1 62 B
0.5	-80	40.1	2.0	80 80	03 <u>*</u> 8
0.5	-80	77+3	2.0	=8U d∩	40.7
0.5	~80	85.0	2.0		
^ <b>m</b> r	<b>6</b> 0	ma /	2,0	<b>→10</b> 0	43•4
0.75	<del>~</del> 80	79.0	2.0	+100 +100	24 a 1 (0 2
0.75	-80	58.0	2.0	=100	40.3
0.75	-80 -	40.9	2.0	<b>⊷100</b>	40.0
1 0	do.	n/ a	2.0	~100	<i>್ರ</i> ರ <sub>0</sub> ರ ಗರ್ರಾ
T•0	-80	70.0	2.0	= 100 = 100	57e2
1.0		88.6	2.0	-100	10.4
<b>1</b> •0	-80	07•7	2.0	-100	40.7
			2.0	-120	43+4
			2.0	<u>+14</u> 0	1200 1207
			2.0	=120	42.1
			2.0	-120	30.9

.....

\_

-

••• • • • •	Distance from Weld Centerline Inches	Testing Temper- ature <sup>O</sup> F	- : -	Eccentric Notch Strength 1000 psi
• • •• • • •	2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0	-140 -140 -140 -140 -140	یں ریک کے مرکب کے	29.4 33.1 34.6 35.4
	· ·	•		<i></i>
	:			
			· · · ·	· •
			• • •	
`				
· .				
1		١	• . <u>*</u>	
• 7		i ,		
. }		· · · ·		
, ,	÷			
Υ.	12	÷	,	••
	·	× · ·	· · · ·	
				· · ·
•		¢		**
4	· · · ·	•		
	•			
	·		· ·	
	,	,		
н. 1		:		
· · · ·	•			
		й. •	1,0	•
;				
		1		
- <u>1</u>				
				. •
-				
*		• <sup>5</sup> :		
·. ·				
• .				